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DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSET'TS, To wiT:

District Clesk’s- Office.

nEi IT REMEMBERED, That on the eleventh day of

April A. D. 1820 in the forty-fourth year of the Independ-
ence ofthe United States of America, WILLIAM S. SPEAR
of the said District, has deposited in this office the title of a
Book the right whereof he claims as Froprietorin the words
following, to wit:

“The Trial of Michael I swars, on an indictment for the
Murder of Timothy Kennt 'y * before the Supreme Judicial
Court of Massachusetts, at- Boston, April 11, 1820.”? 3 b

In conforinity to the Act of the Cengress of the United
Kiates entitled, “Ar Act for the Encouragement of Learn-
inz, by securing the Copies of Maps, Charts and Books, to
the Authors and Proprietors of sueh Copics, during the times
therein mentioned,” and also to an Act entitled, ““An Act
supplementary to an Act, entitled, An Act for the enconr-
acenient of learning, by securing the Copies of Maps.
Charts and Books, to the Authors and Proprietors of such
Copies during the times therein mentioned ; and extending
the benefits thereof to the Artsof Designing, Engraving and
Ktehing Historical and other Prints.”

S | Clerk of the Districe
JNO. W, DAVIS, g of Massachusetts.
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TRIAL OF POWARS.
—y <, ——

Friday, March 31, 1820.
SUPREME JUDICIAL COURT.
PRESENT,
Hon. ISAAC PARKER, L.L.D. Chief Justice.

Hon. GEORGE THATCHER, } Justices
Hon. CHARLES JACKSON, :

Counsel for the prosecution, PErREz MorToN, Esq.
Attorney General.—Counsel for the prisoner
assigned by the Court, Danvier WEBSTER and
WiLLiaM Simmorns, Esquires,

| The Prisoner was brought into court, and be-
ing called, the Indictment was then read by the
Glerk, as follows (=~

CCMMONWLEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS.

Suffolle and Nanlucket, ss.

AT the Supreme Judicial Court, begun and hclden af
Boston, within the said County of Suffolk, and for the sad
Counties of Suffolk and Nantucket, on the first Tuesday of
March, in the year of our Lord One Thousand eight hundred
and twenty.

The Jurors for the said Commonwealth, upon their oaih
present, that MicrAerL Powars, of Boston aforesaid, la-
bourer not having the fear of God before his eyes, hut be.
ing,moved and seduced by the instigation of the Devil, on the
2d day of March, 1n tbe year of our Lord one thousand eight
hundred and twenty, with foree and arms, at Boston afore-
s1id, in the County of Suffolk aforesaid, in and upon one Tiars
orHY KENNEDY, In the peace of said Commonwealth then
and there being, feloniously, wilfully,and of his malice afore- "
thought, did make ap assault, and that the said Micuags
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Powains, with a eertain broad axe of the value of one dollar,
which he the said MicHAEL Powars, in both his hands then
and there had and held, him the said Timoruny KenNNEDY, in
and upon the back part of the head under the left coronak

suture of him the said Trmoray KENNEDY, then and there fel-
eniously, willfully, and of his malice aforethoughl did strike,
penetrate and wound, giving to the said Timoruny KENNEDY,
then and there with a broad axe aforesaid, in and upon the

back part ef the head, under the left coronal suture of him
the sald Trivorry KENNEDY, one mortal wound, of the
breadth and width of two inches, and of the depth of two and
and an half, of which ‘said Trmorny KEsxeDpY then and
there instantly died. And so the Jurors aforesaid upon their
eath aforesaid, do say, that the saidd MicHAeL Powars, him
the said TiMoTRY KEJ:WEM in manner and form aforesaid,
feloniously, wilfully and of his malice aforethought, did klll;
~and murder, against the peace of the Commonwealth afore-
said, and contrary to the forin of the statute in such case
made and provided.

A tme bill. =
ARNOLD WELLES, I‘nreman.

Penez Morron, Attorney General,

Clerk. Michael Powars, What say you to this Indigt-
wient, are you gmlty, or not guilty ?

Prisoner. Not guilty.

Clerle. How will you be tried?

Prisoner. By God and my country,

Clerk. God send you a good deliverance !

'The Court appointed Tuesday the eleventh of April, fap,
she trial of the Prisoner.

%
Tuesday, April 11, 1820,

Tre Court met at nine o’clock; MICHAEL Pow ARss.
the pnsoner was set to the bar,

Clerk. MicHAEL PowaRrs, you ‘are now set to the
bar to be tried, and thcse good men, whom I shall call,
- are to pass between you and the Commonwealth upon
your trial. If you would object to any of them, you
must do it, as they are called, and before they are
SWOrn.

The jurors were then called, and the prisoner chal-

lenged eighteen peremptorﬂy
And the following gentiemen, were swoin,
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JURORS.

ROBERT FENELLY,  § WILLIAM MILLS,
SAMUEL BARBER, JOHN RAYNER,
AARON BANCROFT,  § ROBERT ROGERSON,
ANDREW DRAKE, { EPHRAIM SNOW,
PHINEAS UPHAM, DAVID SHUTE,
MICHAEL KINNAIRD, §CALVIN SPEAR.

The InpicTuenT was then read.

Clerk. GentrEMEN oF THE Jurv. To this Inpicr-
menT the Prisoner at the bar, hath pleaded not guilty,
and for trial hath put himself upon God and his country,
‘which country you are. ¥You are now sworn to try the
issne. If he is guilty, you will say se. If he is not
ouilly, you will say so and no more. Geod men and
true, siand tegether, and hearken to your evidence.

The ATToRNEY GENERAL 1n opening, alluded
to the alarming increase of crimes amongst us ;.
stated that the testimony on the part of the govern.
ment to be adduced, was of that kind called pre-
sumptive, and briefly defined the distinctions be-
tween positive and presumptive evidence. He then
stated particularly the case as he expected it would
appear from the witnesses, and proceeded to call
them.,

THoMas BApGer, Sworn.

I am a Coroner. On the b5th of March last, I was:
called to take an Inquest on a body in South Russel
street. | summoned a jury, There appeared on the
head maiks of a violent blow. The blow appeared to
have been given with sufficient violence to knock
down a bullock; certainly with. force enough to kill a
man. 'T'he hands, face and ciothes much burned.

Question by Court. Was the skull broken by the
wound ?

Answer. Yes, very much indeed.

Dr. SHURTLEFF, Sworm,.
I was called to examine the body of Kennedy, T
found the bosom, face, under side of the hands and wrist.
1*
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considerably burned. There was a fracture of the
head, The back part of the skull fractured two inches
each way. I passed my finger in and felt the brain.
The wound appeared to have been made by a blunt in-
strument ; such as the head or eye of an axe. The

fracture was made on the upper part of the parietal
bone, near the coronal suture.

Ques. by Court. Was the wound a heavy one !
Ans, Yes. |

Q. by Court. Was the wound sufficient to produce
death ?

Ans. Yes. VWhen the body was turned on the
back, some blood flowed from the wound,
- Q. by Court. Could you ascertain with any certain-
ty how long since the blow had been given? Ans. No.
Ques, by Pris. Coun. Might not the blow have been
‘given by a hammer? ' |
Jns. It might by any blunt mstrument of sufficient:
size and weight. |
Q. by P. C. Could you say it was an axe ?
Ans. No, it might have been done with an iron
dog ; but more probably with the head of an axe.

fit. Gen. Have you known Kennedy ?
JAns. Inever have.

Samues APPLETON, Esq. testified,

That Kennedy had lived with- him since July Jast,
and continued with him until Thursday, March 2d.
He did not lodge at his house, but was a daily laborer.
On Friday, March 3d, he found that he had been absent
the afternoon before, and that day. On inquiring at his
iodgings on Saturday, found that he had not been seen
there after taking his dinner on 'I‘hu?'sdayh Mr. A. af-
terwards got a warrant, and went with Reed the con-
stable to search the house of Powars ; found there Su-
san Campbell, much iatoxicated, and who could give
them no information. He went a second time to the
house of Powars and could obtain no information. On
Sunday morning, he went again to Powars’ house.
Reed.came soen aftery and entered the cellar through
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a small scuttle over which a barrel was placed. On tiie’
side of the scuttle there appeared a spot of blood.
Reed soon called him, telling him he had found the
body. He went down and saw the body, and it was af-
terwards brought up and examined. He knew the
body perfectly well, and described the wound, as before
by Dr. Shurtleff. He had paid Kennedy at dlﬂ'erent times
and always in the money of the Keene Bank. On the
16th Feb. he paid him a ten and two five dellar bills of
Keene Bank: Owed him at the rate of one dollar »
day from Aug, 7th, except forty dollars paid him
since ; having paid hlm twenty four dollars on the 7th
Aug. Kennedy was a remarkably faithful, peaceable,
and 1ndustrious man. He could write, and had oftered-
to keep an account of the work done for Mr. Appleton
by other laborers at a time when he proposed making

a journey.

Pris. Coun. Had Kennedy any income or property
except the money which he received from yeou ?

Ans. Not that 1 know of. I told him that he receiv-
ed so little money that he would not have enough to
pay his board- He said he had some other money.

Georee ReEep, Sworn.

On Saturday March 4th, Mr. Appleton sent for me
at Col, Austin’s office. Mr. Appleton, stated to me
that Kennedy was missing, and Col. Austin thought it
was proper to get a warrant agamst Powars, 1 went to
Justice Gorham’s and got a warrant, and then went to
Powars’ house, but found he was not at home. 1 went
again on Sunday to search for the body. 1 observed
some blood on the scuttle, I got a light and stripped
off my clothes and went down cellar. They handed me
down a pick-axe and shovel, and Mr. Cleesby came
down to helpme. I found blood on the ground and on
a chip. The cellar was about six feet clear of two tiers
of wood piled in it. I removed one tier and found the
earth shuffled up and it seemed loose. 1 then remov-
ed the other tier. 1 found loose earth ‘mewly dug
about the size of a grave. I removed the earth tiil I
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found a body. The arm was discovered first. "The bow
dy was pulled up and it appeared to be Timothy Ken-
nedy. The face appeared to be burnt. We got arope
and lifted the body out of the cellar. |

Ques. by Court. Did you know Kennedy ?

Ans.  Yes'; I put him in gaol at Powars’ suit.

Court, Are you sure it was he 7

Ans, Yes.

Mr. Reed shewed a broad axe to the jury, and point-
ed out specks of blood upon it. ‘

Reed. The axe appeared to have been newly washed.
There appeared to be some hair upon the head of the
axe. 'I'here 1s some now.

Court. Was the closet open 7

Ans, It was not locked.

Juryman. What was the colour of Kennedy’s hair ?

Ans, Sandy.

€. for P. Where has that axe been kept

Ans. In the Supreme Court room, under lock and’
key. '

C- for P. Did you see the axe before you went down
cellar ? ‘ -

Ans. Yes. Mr. Lancaster saw it first. The blood.
en the scuttle mduced us to go down. a2 )

Joun Dogsson, Sworn.

Court. Are you a Romran Catholic 7
" JAns. Yes. |

Court., Do youfeel bound by the oath as nmow ad--
ministered ? .

Ans. Yes. Istand here tospeak the truth.
used to this form of the oath,

At. Gen. What is your occupation ?

Ans. 1 am a Tailor. Kennedy came into my house
on T'uesday, to get his coat fixed. It was a black one.
While 1 was fixing the coat he looked at my books.
He said I had some which he had never seen, and asked
me to lend him some, which I did. He took two, and
gaid he wanted t« see me again on Thureday particularly,
when he would return the books, and he wished me to -

I am
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be at home. T1live in South Russell street, on the same
side of the way with Powars, and near his house. 1had
a book in my hand at about a quarter past two o’clock,
and was waiting for Kennedy, when I saw Powars pass
shaking his head violently, and just after Kennedy pass+
ed and nodded to me and laughed.  Theyv went to-
wards Powars’ house, and turned into his gate, and I
sawﬂndthing more of them. I had some work to do for
a man 1n Newbury street, and on Friday I carried home
his clothes, His daughter told me, there was a bad
report, and asked me if I knew Kennedy that worked:
for Mr. Appleton. I said, yes. She toid me that he
was dead. 1 was informed that Powars’ house had been
searched, On Sunday morning about eight or nine
o’clock, two gentlemen went by my window. They
went into Powars’ house. I went myseif to Powars®
house, [ saw the body after it was taken up, and knew
it to be Kennedy’s. Aboul a {welve month ace, Pow-
ars told me of a concealed place in his cellar. 1n our
own country we sometimes have such places to con-
ceal tobacco and such things to avoid paying duties,

Attorn, Gen. Had Kennely a memorandum book ?

Ans. Yes. He took 1t from the pocket of his pane
taloons on the Tuesday when he took the two books. [
have sometimes seen it in his coat-breast-pocket.

Attorn. Gen. Is the beok precduced the same one,
and did he always carry it about with him ?

Ans. 1t is the same book. He had it in his pocket
on Tuesday, and took it out to pay me, and took a one
dollar bill out of it.

Coun. for Pris. How do you know this is the same
book ? s

Ans. How do I know? Do not you think I teke
particular notice of such things? I told Kennedy that
it was not the right kind of pocket book he said he
knew it, but 1t served him.

Coun. for Pris. Were your windows open when Pow-

ars and Kennedy passed by ? dns. No.
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Coun. for Pris. How then did you know that they went
into the gate ?

JAns. By the waving of their hands, and the flaps of
their coats as they turned. 1

Coun. for Pris. How far apart were Powars and
Kennedy when they passed ?

Ans. About five or six yards. They were both in
sight at the same time. My wife said that Kennedy
and Powars were countrymen, and that Powars had
taken Kennedy nto his house to give him something to
drink, but that Kennedy would come in presently.

Att. Gen. Do you know the clothes now produced ?

Ans. 1 know the clothes very well as | made them
for Kennedy, and he brought me this waistcoat pat-
tern to make up, and I advised him not to, and he told
me he had put it into his chest; 1 know it by this spot.

The witness identified a coat, pantaloons and waist-
coat, by some marks which he pointed out, and said
there were othier marks which he could explain to a
person in the same business, but which a jury would
not understand.  He said he knew his own work, every
man works In a particular way of his own.

At. Gen. To Mr. Appleton. Did you make the des-
cription of the clothes in the advertisement from Mr
Dobson’s account of them ?

Mr. Af:pleton. 1 did.

The Attorney Gen.reads the advertisement in which
the description corresponded with the clothes produ-
ced.

Barsara Dosson, (wife of the preceding witness)—
Sworn.

On the 2d Marchy Isaw Mr Powars about b o’clock,
come out of his gate with a portmanteau trunk in bhis
left hand ; and go up the street swinging his arm. He
went up into Myrtle-sireet. I have seen him havea
memorandum-book, (the book found with Powars is
shown to her.) This is the book, Kennedy used to have
a tape tied round it. The last time 1 saw the memoran-

sum book was on T'uesday, Kennedy opened it, ane
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took out a bill, which I took to change. I wanted te
see Kennedy on Thursday about some books.

P. C. What books 7

Ans. ““0Old Farmers Friend, and ¢¢ A Rich Cabinet of
Heavenly Jewels.” Tim was very peaceable and relig-
1ous.

Camnarine Ferris—Sworn.

On Thursday March 2d, 1 saw Powars aboul half past
% o’clock in the afternoon. [ heard a voice, and looked
out and saw a man buttoning a brown surtout which he
kad on. It was the prisoner. 1 Live at No. 7, Wharf-
street, in part of the same house in which Mrs. Hewes
lives. I heard a loud talking before I looked out of the
window. And the prisoner appeared to have come out
of Mrs. Hewes” house and to be agitated. A trunk was
upon the step of the door with him. 1 saw him take
up the trunk, and walk away. 1did not see who he
was speaking to.

Sartry Hewes— Sworn.

On Thursday 2d March last, Michael Powars
came to my house about half past five o’clock in the
afternoon, and said he was coming to board with me.—
I asked him i he had had any falling out with his old
woman. He said no, but thought he might as well go
to board. He said that he wanted to go into a room and
shirt him. 1 directed him to a lower room. He said
that would not do, that he wanted to go up stairs. I them
shewed him into the chamber, in which Kennedy slept.
Powars soon wentaway, and 1 did not see him after-
wards I kept supper waiting, until 9 o‘clock for Ken-
nedy to come home. He didnot come, and I supposed
that he stopped at Mr. Appleton’s. On Sunday, a young
man came and enquired for him. I examined Kenne-
dy’s chest, and found it unlocked, and nothing remain-
ing in it but a few old things. Kennedy had a change
of clothes. (Some remnants of clothes were produced
in Court.) She zaid she found those in Kennedy’s
chest. -*

Mr. Dogson, was cailed again.

"
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A. Gen. Did you reiurn any remnant with the
elothes of Kennedy ?

Ans. Yes, and those are the pieces. In my coun-
try it 18 customary to return all remnants.

Pris. Coun. Mrs. Hewes do you know whether Ken-
nedv’s chest was locked on Thursday? Jnrs. No.

A. Gen. Did Powars know Kennedy’s chest.

Ans. In all likelihood as the chest came out in the
wessel in which Powars was a passenger.

Pris. Coun. Were Powars and Kennedy related te
each other?

- JAns. Kennedy’s mother was Powars’ cousin.
Evizagetn KeLvy, Sworn.

Kennedy boarded with me more than a year, he was
of a peaceable and gniet disposition. He had a suit of
clothes made by Dobson. { should know them again be-
cause there were pieces fastened on the folds. (Clothes
were produced ;) and she identified them. |
., Did Kennedy keep a memorandum book ?

Ans. Yes. [The memorandum book shown te
her.] She knew it to be Kennedy’s. Powars came
fo her house about five weeks before the murder
and wished her to board him. He referred to Kenne-
dy for his character and said that he was hus relation.
At dinner she observed that Powarsand Kennedy did
not speak with each other. In the evening, wilness
inquired of Kennedy the cause of this reserve. He
said Powars was the old villain that he had a law-
auit with, and had not told the truth. Witness offered.
Powars a chamber by himself, and urged hin to take 1,
but he preferred to lodge in the same chamber with
Kennedy, and other boarders. He lodged there but
one nicht. Powars came again to Mrs. Kelly’s about
a week before the murder, and asked her if she would
board him again, she told him that she would. In the
course of conversation she told him that Kennedy had
left her, at which he appeared surprised, and asked
where he had gone. He asked her if Keunnedy had
paid ber, and on her answering in the aflirmative, be
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eaid he wag glad of if, for he was a singular charaeter,
He asked her if Kennedy had anymoney. Wiiness
answered that she did not know, Powars (hen sat and
seemed thoughttul, looking in the fire for a few min-
utes and then went lmsuly out of the room. lle did
not return then to board. Mrs. Kelley ,also swora io
several articles of cloathing as belong‘mﬂ' to Kennedy,
which were produced by Keed, baving been taken bv
him, from Powars’ chest.
Susan CaneprLL, Sworn.

I ived in the house with Powars. 1 Went {o Mr.
irench’s on Thursday in the forenoon, and returncd
in- the afterncon, and found Powars at lmmc.

At. Gen. What was Powars doing ?

Ans. He was putting a few thmn‘q into a pack——the
pack was already made up.  He said he was going to
Mobue, where he had soine months before said he was
gomg. He went out eariv in the mornine ¢n Fyiday,
and said he should returs to breakfast. 1 waited fur
him until nine o’clock, but he did not come homs.

At. Gen. Did you ever hear Powars make use of ary
threats ?

Aps. He had said he would be revenged; 1 do not
know that he mentioned any particular person.

[ Witness was asked who owned a trunk which vus
produced in court. She saidit was hers. BJys. Dobson
was called again, and said it was the same truzic she
saw PPowars carrying under his arm on Thursday. |

At. Gen. When you returned on’ Thursday did you
observe any remarkable appearance about the hopse

Ans. No. Theashes were scattered a littie al.out the
fire-place, and | did not find some scouring civilis which
I' left in the house.

C. for P. Were there any curtains ?
Ans. Yes.

C. for P. Did you not take them down a few (ke
before to wash ? | |
Anﬂ No. 'They were up on Thurs{,.av

(. for P. Did they cover the whole window ?
& .
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Aps. Only the lower half.

P. C. Is the room lower than the ground ?

Ans. Yes; it 15 very much exposed.

P. C. Did you not buy new curtains ?

“Ans. Yes; on Thursday. |

~ At. Gen. Was the door locked when you returned on
Thursday ?

Ans. It wasy and Powars let me in. There were no
steps to the cellar through the scuttle, and I pever
saw any body but Powars go down. He used to bring
Mp my wood.

P. C. Ihidyou not take down the white curtains
on Thursday ?

Ans. Ithink I did; but cannot remember.

At. Gen. Did yousee a pick-axe ? e

Ans. I did on Thursday. Powars said he borrowed
it of Mr. Taylor to break up the ice in the yard.

At. Gen. Did he break-up theice ? |

Ans. No. '

P. C. Was Powars discomposed on Thursday ?

Ans. No. He slept as usual. '

P. C. Did he always sleep at home.

Ans. Yes. |

P.C. Was the broad-axe ever used to cut meat,

Ans. Yes. Both by myselfand by Powars.

Tromas Frenon, Swern,

Thursday 2d March, Susan Campbell was- at my
house ; she came about 11 o’clock in the morning and
staid an hour and a half'; took $1 and went out shopping;
she returned before dinner and staid until 5 o’clock.
lo answer to several questions from the prisoners coun-
sel, Mr. I'rench described particularly the situation of
the house and cellar and stated that the partition which
separated the cellar of Powars, from the one adjoining,
was as good as common, and could not in his opinion be

;-e_asily removyed,
Wizrian Taxior, Sworn.

1 own the nonse 1 whitelk Powers lived : there is a

......
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which was not there when Powars took possession of
the honse—heard Powarz in April last, speakiog of a
law-suit with a relation of his from Ireland ; Le seem-
ed very much dissatizfied with the result of the law-
suit, and said that he would have satisfaction, and

would be revenged. He asked witness in May to go
with him to Mr. Parker his lawyer.. Mr. Parker offer-
ed him some money, 413, he took 1t and gave a re
ceipt, still saying that he would have satisfaction.
Witness went to Mr. Fuller’s-with him, and Mr. Fuller
said all was right. Powars borrowed of witness a pick-
axe, February 23d to break the icein lis yai d, as lie
said ; which he did not return.

Pris. Coun. What is his general eharacter ?

Ans.  He i3 temperate and industrious. He lived in
my house four years, except a temporary absence. I
never knew any thing amiss in him.

Wm. Lancaster. Powars worked for me i 1817 ;
Lhe made a voyage to Ireland; and returnedin 1818. He
said that he brought two men with him, cne of which
was Kennedy, and that he had lent them money. 1
had understood that he had a law-suit with Kennedy—-
I asked him 1f he had settled with Kennedy ; he said
he had, and that he would have satisfaction, and could
take a horse and get off, from any trouble 1 conse-
quence of it. 1 do not remember the exact expres-
stons which he made use of ; 1 advised him to use cau-
tion. When I heard of Kennedy’s murder, the threat-
ening language of Powars occurred to me. I saw the
axe tn his house, and first discovered marks of blood
on it and on the scuttle ; there was a barrel over the
scuttle full of chips. Mr. Reed went down the scuitle
with another man, and picked up a chipin the cellar.

Pris. Coun. How long since these threats ?

“Ans. 1 believe that I heard them the first of the
year 1819. !

Pris. Coun. What is the general character of Pow-
ars 7 Jns. That of an indusirious, sober man. | have
known him ten er twelve years, ~
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Davio Krrry, Sworn.

ware ndaced three youug men,of whom Kennedy
was one, to come out from Ireland with him, and they
became indebted to him for their passage mouney, and
for some money lent. I made unsuccessful attempts to
produce a settlement between them. Some months
ago, alter a decision by a referee, Powars told me he
would sue Kennedy and put him in gaolif I would not
bail him, for Kennedy had no other friends, and Pow-
ars oftered me ten dollars if I would not be his bail. [
told him it was unreasonable, and I put him in mind of
a private oath he had taken to abide by tho award of
the referee.

Josernn Kinesrey, Sworn.

I heard Powars say he meant to have satisfaction of
Kennedy. 1'supposed he meant to whip him or some-
thing of that kind. He said he had been wronged in
his law suit.

| Samver D. Parker, Sworn.

October bth, 1813, Powars applied for three writs,
‘one of them agamnst Kennedy for twenty doliars lent
him, to pay his passage from Ireland. The other writs
were against two persons by the name of Mc’Daniel
for similar cause of action. Kennedy was committed to
caol. 'The action against him was entered, and Col.
Austin appeared in his defence. There was no evi-
denice on either side, and the parties agreed to re-
ferit. An award was made that Powars should pay
ik ennedy five dollars and twelve cents, which  award
was accepted by Mr, Minot. Powars refused to pay

the sum awarded, upon which Col. sustin brought an
action on the award, before Mr. Minot and the action
was carried into the Court of Common Pleas by appeal.
The referees were then examined, and Col. Austin
was convinced the action would not be sustamed.
(‘olonel Austin and ‘myself agreed to dismiss the ac-
tion, and have nothing to do with it personally. On
the 7th of May, Powars expressed dissatisfaction at the

result. _ .
Ceéeuvn. for Pris. Was Powars’ elaim unfounded
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Ans. Ido not think it was. | |

Thomas Philpot, Sworn. Had heard Powars say some
time in Oct. last, that he had been down in town about
a law suit—that Kennedy owed him forty dollars. He
sa1d he was afraid that he should lose it, and he would
be revenged on Kennedy. If he did not pay bim
he would murder him. I told him that would be
cutting off his nose to spite his face. He said he did
n6t care, he would murder him. At the time he sad
this, he was very much intoxicated, which I had never
known him to be before.

James Vinal sworn. 1 saw Powars in Bowdoin-square,
about a month or «ix weeks since ; we walked together.

He asked me if I knew Kennedy. 1 told him that I did.
He said Kennedy was a rascal-—that he had loaned him

money, which had not been repaid, and he would kill
kim ifhe could get a chance. 5 g

- Mrg' Mary Fowle sworn. Lives in a part of the house
which the prisoner occupied.  Was at home all Thurs-
day. lieard ne noise in Powars’ apartment, aad did not
see himego inor out. Wiiness has 5 children. A week
or ten days before 2d March, Susan Campbell came bome
and ceuld not open her door, 1 looked and found the
kev was muide. She called Powars by name several
times, and asked him to open the door. At length he
came (fmm the celiar as my daaghter sairl,) and opened
the d..or.

Court. Is there an entry between your house and
Powars.," UAns. Yes, ' | |
" Coun, fur Prisoner., What ig the partition in the
ceilar made of ?

Jins. Preces ofhoards net "astened at the top,

Mary Ann Fowse, Is 14 years old. V\ as «t home on
the 2d Hd.f h. Dbiulnot sce P.wars. “ome deS agon
Qusan Camphell came home and couid not ualasten har
door. My mother looked end found the key was op
the inside. “After a shortumel looked through the
ey hole, and saw' Powars come up. from the ce“,ar
threush the scuttle, and set the llght or the {lcor. H‘e

then openedthe dodr,
: ﬂ*
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B i o JONATHAN FOWLF,JT Esq. Sworn.

Tn the afterncow of the 15th of March, mv brother,
George M. Fowle told me he had found Powars, and
nsked me what he should do. 1 directed him to ob-
tain a warrant from Alderman Badn-er, and a constable,
and farrest him immediately. = He hesitated at first a-
hout doing any thing. 1asked him if he was sure it was
Powars ? He said he was pretty sure. I told him to
be certain of that before he arrested him, and 1 wo'uld
wait at Alderman Badger’s office until he came up.
Wichael Powars was arrested at Philadelphia on the
i5th March inst.  Sometime after Powars was brought
i to Ald. Badger’s by M’Masters and Melliman, follow-
ed by George. 1 undertook to examine him, and in an-
swver to a number of questions put to him by me, and
same by the Magistrate, he said that his name was Mi-

chinel Powars, that-he had lived in several places. in
n-:,mton, and last in South-Russell street. - That he knew
Susan Campbell, that he had reason to know her,
for “he had lived with ht_,,r 12 or 14 years,
Hrangh ﬂhp was not ins wife.  'T'hat he left Boston the
latter end of February, tIElVﬁllEd on foot to Providence,
where he remained about 24 hours, and then took
passage in a vessel for Philadeliphia, where he arrived
the day before he was arrested. 1 askedhim if re
kuew Timothy Kennedy. He answered “yes” ¢ did
you bring him over to this country from Ireland, and
pay fdr his passage 7 ¢ Yes.” ¢ Did you sue Bim ai-
terwards for the money 77 “Yes.,” “ Didyou recov-
er any thine on the suit 22 -« [ Jdont know, Sqmre Park-
er hud the care of it. Inever got any thing.” Have

you had a quarrel with Kennedy 1 ¢« No, I have had
a law suit with him, but no quarrel.” 1 then asked
hima when he saw him last ? He said he did not know.
I repeated the question—He was somewhat confused—
said the last time he saw him was about a fortnight he-
tore he left Boston. Did yousee him the r]ay before
you left Boston ? ¢ No—Alderman Badger who had

“been reading a paper my brother brought in, said ‘Mich*
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ael, Timothy Kennedy was at your house the very day
before you left Boston, he wasseen to gom.” Te
this Powars made no reply. I then said, Michael, Ken-
nedy has been murdered, and you are charged with
having murdered him. He seemed alarmed, but not
surprised at the accusation, answered instantly, though
ina low tone of voice, that he was not guilty ; that
1o man living could prove 1it. |

I told him the proofs were very strong against him.
He zaid again *“I am not guilty” I then teld him S. Camp-
bell was in jail; upon which he said, with great quick-
ness, she has no right to be there. “Why ?” “Because
she has no right to be there”—** Why 7 ¢ She never
did any thing wrong.”” “ Who has a right to be in
jail 77 He hesitated, but said he did not know. 1 said
that probably before that time Susan Campbell has told
the.whole story about the murder. He said quickly,
she can’t, no person living can prove it.”’ Alderman
Badger said, ¢ Michael, 1 believe you have killed Ken-
nedy.” Powars answered, I am sorry you have so
bad an opivion of me, sir.”” ~ Alderman. “l mustsend-
you back to Boston” Powars. *“ What for?’ Alder-
man. “ To take your trial for this murder.” At this
information, Powars became frightened, and agitated,
and the tears came into his eyes.  He turned suddenly
round, stepped quickly across the room, and teok a seat
ou the settee. 1 directed the officers to search him.
They did so, and {found an old razor in his pocket, an
oid silver waltch in his foh, some money in bank nctes,
and silver, and a number of guincuas sewed up in the
back part of his suspenders. e said there were 104
in the whole, and that he teok them out of the Savings:
Bank the day before he leit Beston. He appeared to
be very unwilling to part with his mouney, altkough I
told him 1t should be taken care of. One of the con-
stables was obliged to cut his suspenders, in order to
get them off. Powars paid his landlord 75 cents for
his lodging, &c.and was then committed to prison. The
officers said they would go after his chest, "1'he next

/
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day they showed me a large red one in Alderman B’s
office, as belonging to Powars, which 1 opened, found
the memorandum book, and other things, and which is
the same chest that I 0pened in the presence of Pow-
ars at the prison on the twenty fourth, and which
Powars claimed at that time with its contents. 1 asked
him if he had laid in scme wood just before he left Bos-
ton ? He said no, at first. Afterwards he said he had
some pine wood. lasked him when he got it? He said
some time last summer. “ How mnch did you lay in at
that time ?” ¢ I don’t know.” ¢ Was there one cord or
16 77 “ I dont know ; it was more than one cord.”
‘ Did you buy any more during the winter ?° ¢ No.”
‘“ Did that last you all winter 77 After some hesita-
tion, he said, ¢ No.” “Didyou live part of the winter
without a fire in your house 7’ ¢ No.”

March 23, Reed arrived at Philadelphia. I went
with him to the prison ; asked Powars if he wanted
any thing and how he faréd ? He. said he fared very
well, but “he wanted a clean shirt. I told him I would
en_deai or to get it for him. - He asked Reed if he was
come after him, &c. On the 24th March, [ sent Powars’
chest to the prison. Powars came in, and I tcld
him that 1 had brought his chest that he might change
himself and asked him what he wanted ? He said a
clean shirt and cravat. I proceeded to open the chest,
Powars appeared to be in a great hurry and offered to
assist me. I asked him if he brought the chest {rom
Boston. He said no, he bought it in Providence. When
the chest was opened | pmrmtt(,d him to take out sueh
things as he pleased. Without lookinz for a shirt, he
took the hat ;Jblue coat, pantaloons, and waistco: at, (whrch
the wiiness ldenuhed the same sworn to by Dobson)
and put them in a great hnrry into the fire-place. He
put his own hat into the chest, and covered it with the
blanket. I took out a shirt and o oave him. He began
to strip 1n order to put on the blue clothes and waist-
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ceat. 1 asked him what he was going to do ? and he
gaid he was going to put them on. All this time his
hands shook, he appearedto be in a great hurrv and
considerably agitated, I told him that he wanted only a
shirt and cravat, but he said he wanted all the things
he had taken out. He had taken off his surtout in a
geat hurry, in order to put on the hiue coat.. 1 then
told him he must not have them, and desired him to
put them into his chest again. The coatl think he
had put on, I made him take it off again. 'I'he keep-
er Deacon who was also present during the whole
time, told him his clothes were good enough for the
prison, and better ones would be spoiled. He was re-
luctant to return them, when I told him positively that
he should take nothing but a shirt, and cravat. He
then put the hat, coat, &c. in haste into the chest, and
covered them as well as he could with the blankets, as
if he was desirous of concealing them from our view.
He retained a shirt and black cravat. 1 repeatedly
asked him if all his things were there, and if any thing
was missing ? He said they were all in the chest,
and he did not miss any thing. Before he put the
clothes back, I told him te try on the blue coat. I want-
ed to see how he looked in it.” He did so, & it was both
too long & too large for him. The sleeves in particular
were much too long for him. After he had put them mto
the chest, I took up the coat, and asked him where he
gotit? He said he bought it at auction. In answer to
similar questions about the hat, pantaloons and waist-
coat, he said he bought them. I asked him if those
clothes ever belonged to I'imothy Kennedy. He said
no—He afterwards said, Kennedy had given him a paie
of pantaloons, but when I asked where they were ? he
said he did not know, I asked him if he did notgo down
to Kennedy’s boarding house just hefore he left Bos-
ton ? He said he went there two or three days before.
I asked him what his business was there. He said he
went there to shirt himself. I asked him if he could not
shirt himself at home? Ne. Why ? Beeause I hadne shirt
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there. 1 asked him ifhe found a shirt at Kennedy’s
house ? He said no.. Where did he get it? He took
it with him in a small trunk. He also said something
abont his Taylor, but I do not recollect. I then shew:
ed him the memorandum book, which I took out of his-
chest unobserved by him, and asked him if that ever-
belonged to Timothy Kennedy 7. He became confused,
and his voice faltered as he answered in the athrmative.
“ How came it in your possession 7’ ¢ Kennedy gave it
to me:** When 77 ¢ This last fall, we boarded together.
at the time.” “Did you not' take this out of Kennedy’s
trunk just before you left Boston 7 ¢ No.” Ishewed
him the §10 note, and asked him how he came by that 7
He said, Kennedy gave it to him for a debt; which.
he ovied him. He thenturned round and stepped gquickly-
to the other end of the room, as if to avoid further cen-
versation on the subject. Recovering. himself a little,
he turned round and asked me if Reed had come on
after him, whether he should be hand-cuffed, &c. F
then asked him if ‘he had made a trap door in the floor
of hishouse. He said, ¢ yes,” ¢ what for 7’ to throw
his wood down, which he could not do before, without
going through another person’s houge : I asked “him if*

he had been digging in his cellar just before he left-
Boston. Me answered no. If he had an axe in his

house ? He said he had two. [ then told him the body
of Kennedy was found buried in his cellar. He said it
must have been done after he came away, and says he,
«“ If he got an unlucky blow it was not for his money, for
he had not any, I knew he was poor.” ‘This he repeat-
ed several tlme:-, I never had told him of the manner
of Kennedy’s death. He said also, 1 never killed
him, what should I kill him for, 1 knew he had’at any
money.” I told him Le had had a quarrel with him,
He said he had had a law-suit with him, butat was all
made up before he left Boston, and he and Kennedy
had boarded together. He said several times he was
not guilty of the murder, and that no man living could
prove ¥, he defied any man teo prove it against hum. In
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-answer to some other questions, he said he had seen
Kennedy some time before he had left Boston, he
would not tell how long before, that he did not see him
the day before, nor was Kennedy at his house on that
day. ‘That he leit Boston because he had nothing to
do and busipess was dull, that he was going to Ireland
to lay brick, and had engaged a passage on board the
ship Howard, for Dublin. He appeared to be-appre-
hensive that he-should lose some of his property, bat 1
assured him, that every thing belonging to him would
Le taken good care of and sent to Boston. Some >ther
-conversation took place, which 1 de not recollect. He
was not tied o: chained in the prison, but was suffered
- tomix with the other prisoners

At 2 o’clock, the Court adjourned. At a quarter past

3, the trial proceeded. The Attorney General called
‘the atiention of the Court and Jury te the circumstance
‘that the charges in the memorandum book, were in
-uniform hand writing, and continued to the 19th ¥eb.
Mr. Simmons on the part of the Prisoner called wit-
‘nesses.
Wyatt Richards sworn. 1 have known the prisoner
for a year past. I heard him say some time last fall, that
‘he intended to go to Ireland in the sprirg.  He was a
sober, and industrious man, peaceably disposed. I am
an apprentice to Calvin Page.

Calvin Page sworn. 1 have 'known the prisoner
10 or 12 years. I have employed him almost every
-season. His business is attending upon masons. 1 have
always confided in him as an honest man. He s
-industrious and sober. I have heard him talk about
leaving this country. He speaks very quick,-but 1s not
~ gf— a passionate temper that is as far as 1 have observed
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Mer. SIMMONS opened the defence in an argument that
eccupied an hour and an half:—He eommenced by advert-
ing to the difficulty and ardnousness of the duty assigned hy
the Court to the Counsel on the part of the prisoner. The
impressions on the public mind relative to his guilt, and the
fatal effect it might have on the issue—and the importance
of giving him a dispassionate trial. He admitted it was in-
contestibly proved, that Kennedy came to his death between
Thursday morning the second of March—and the Sabbath
following—and that the death was the result of violence
from some one, The question before the Jury was, did
the prisoner at the bar inflict the wounds which caused his
death. Ifhe did, be was guilty of the most savage, "and un-
proveked murder, recorded 1n the annals of eriminal juris-
prudence, without apology or pahiation. Thatit was a crime,
to commit which he could have no motive. The deceased
had acquired no property to be plundered or inherited, and
his removal would not aid him in the accomplishment of any
object. e then adverted to the general character of the
prisoner, as furnishing strong presumption in his favo ur.—
His days had been hungstly laberious, and his nights ded:-

.eated to repose. The fruit of twenty years labour in this
couatry, had placed him beyond the temptation of poverty,
and temperance had stood centinel over his passions; that

“villainy was progressive, and it was contrary to experience
and the human ¢haracter, that the prisoner should plunge in-
to the depth of profligacy precipitately, and at once. Here
was no gradation ; if he was guilty, he-had overlept all the
intermediate steps, and passed from one extreme to the other
in a moment—an anomaly in the human character. If the
prisoner was capable of such a crime, Keonedy would not
" be the probable object of 1t. They werc relatives ; the pris-

~oner had brought Kenunedy to ‘this country, and must feel
that he stood in the place of a guardian and protector. ¥rem

- these relations, natural and acquired, no one could anticipate
that Kennedy would fall by the hand of Powars.

~ No one saw the fatal blow given. The Jury were called
oo to infer the time, place and person, from ihe other facts
proved ; that it became necessary, therefore, to advise them
of the rules of evidence. He then proceeded to state to the
Jury the principles of evidence appliable to the case, and to
read passagesTrom the Books on circumstantial evidence.—
He then pro ceded to censider the circumstancesin th.e.case
relied on by the government, as sufficient to establish the
fact of the prisoner’s guilt.  He first considered the subject
of previons threats, and contended, that the threats proved
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were but the common language of litigants in a moment of
irritatién ; that had Kennedy lived, no such import would
ever have been given them; that the term ¢ satisfaction,”
was the one testified by most of the witnesses to have beéen
wsed by the prisoner, and that never impoited an inteot of
bodily harm, except in the mouths of men, falsely called men
of honour ; that to imply a deadly purpose,words must be ecol,
deliberate and explicit, such as indicate a heart fatally
bent on mischief. Two witnesses only testified to ‘words of
such import ; one when the prisoner was intoxicated, am
event as unusual, as the utterance of the expression. He
next remarked on the prisoner’s flight ; that to be evidence
of gailt, it must appear to have resulted from it, by being ree
referrible to no other probable cause; that his intention to
leave the town had been long fixed, and declared to various
persons at various times, from last fall, to the time of his de-
parture, and that he had assigned adequate motives for it.—
His departure, therefore, and Kennedy’s disappearance,
- sught to be viewed as an accidental coincidence.

He then drew the attention of the Jury to the discoveries
made at the Prisoner’s house, and remarked, that the place,
the time, and the fatal instrument, were supposed to be
elearly proved by the discoveries there. They were made
by persons strongly impressed with a belief of Powars’ guilt,
and ready to yield to the slightest presumptions. Blood
was supposed to be found on the axe and scuttle ; they were
of course inferred to be the blood of Kennedy. He asked,
who by the eye, without any surer (est, would presume te
diseriminate between the stain of bleod and that of other
substances in domestie use ? and who so rash as to attempt te
distinguish the difference between the blood of man and
beast 2 The axe was proved to be in frequent use for chope
ping meat. : ‘ ~

If he was killed by the prisoner, it was in the prisoner’s
room, and at the fire ; there must have been agreal effusion
of blood, leaving the floor strongly marked {rom the fire e
the scuttle. It was improbable the prisoner ever washed
it up, or he would not have left the marks on the axe and
scuttle. He next contended this room was the most
improbable place, to select for the perpetration of the crima,
that detection in the very act was to be expected. The sup-
position was inconsistent with the supposed deliberate mia-
lignity of the prisoner. There were (WO windows on the
street, and one in the yard, and shutters not closed ; every
ohj ect a.d transaction exposed to the gaze of all that pass-
ed. In the next room was a woman and five children, all the
afternoon. On the opposite mde of the street, were two

by
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ihree story houses, overlooking the transactions in the pris.
cmer’s room. If the prisoner committed the murder, it wasg
Letween balf pact two and five o’clock of this afternoon, sur.-
rcunded by such imminent danger of detection. No noise
wzs heard by those in the adjoining room. He contended, if
it were possible, to shew another might have deposited the
tedy in the cellar, 1t ought to.outweigh this rash presumption,
and stated how it might be done.  The cellar doors on the
‘backside of the house could be opened from without, the
partition between the two cellars, of the slightest kind, be
partly removed, and the body deposited where it was foundjy
or two pieces of plank, slightly nailed, as an underpinning
te prisoner’s cellar, removed, and a passage of four feet by
two was made direct into his cellar. He argued that mo-
tives were not wanting fer this act—that the suppesed exist-
ence of a quarrel between Powars and Kennedy would sng-
gest the measure to divert suspicion from them and fix 1ton
Powars. The Counsel then proceeded to notice the cir-
eumstance of the finding of the clothes of the deceased in
the prisoner’s possession, and eontended there was no ‘pos-
itive testimony, that they were taken from the trunk of
Kennedy, for there was none, they were 1n it, at the time of
‘his disappearance ; that there was no proof ef their identity,
il 1oze no higher than proof of similarity ; and argued that
the conduct of Powars, in relation te the clothes, at Phila-
delphia, showed a consciousness of their being his own ; that
the same reasoning applied to the memorandem bhook and
the bapk bill, that there was no proof of the hand writing of
the deceased in the bock. If the prisoner’s declarations
were offered, as evidence the whole must be taken, Baut if
the Jury were satisfied they were stolen,and that they were
the clothes of Kennedy, theanurder was not a neceseary in-
‘erence, It was one circumstance. As to the prisoner’s
supposed confessions, and false declarations at Philacelphia,
e remarked that they ought to weigh little against him;
that innocence, when suspected loses its confidence, and
tometimes exhibits the marks of guilt, and quoted the re.
mark of Lord Marsfield, that ¢¢ it is no uncommon thing
for a man to defend a good cause by foul means, or falsg
pretences.”
~ He commented upon a wvariety of other circumstances
which appeared in evidence, and cited and alluded to @
“nuinber of cases in this country and England, svhere persons
had been convicted on circumstantial evidence, and the
fotel error discovered too late. He congluded with some
geucral remarks, upon the nature of the evidence ; and the
solenan duties the Jury owed to the prisouner and the come
M oity.
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The narrow limits, in which it has been found neces-
sary to confine the account of this.trial, prevents our
-giving any thing more thana very brief ahstract of the
-arguments of Counsel, and the charge of the Chief Jus-
tice.. In making 1t, we have availed ourselves in part
of a comprehensive report, published by the Editor of
the Daily Advertiser. ,

Mr. WeesTer followed in the defence: He said he had
ittle to add to what had been said by his colleague. [e
said that the facts stated on the part of the government
-were not doubted ; the only question was on the infer-
ence {rom these facts. If there was any defect in the
‘series of circumstances against the prisouer the jury
Cinust acquit.  The prisoner has a right to a charitable
‘eonstruction of the circumstances proved. The jury

should not yield to the impression produced by, the a-
trocity of the crime charged. 1t is natural that when
sucn a crime has been committed there should he 3
stroag bias arainst the person suspected. After furthea
general  remarks, he proceeded to comment on some
of the prominent facts of the case proved. - The cir-
enmstance of the body being found in the prisoner’s
cellar was not conclusive, because there were othap
possible modes of access to the cellar, bezides that
‘through bis room. The coincidence of the day when
Powars left town, with that on which the murder was
sonmittad, 1s not conclusive. [t was proved that ha in-
tended to go on some day, it was as iikely to be on that
day-as any other 'I'hethreats which wera relied on
as proof, were not consistent with the cooiness shown
when the crime was committed, if* committed by him.
He remarked upon the finding of the clothes wunon
- Powars, which he contended were not fully identifiad,

wnless by the testimony of a single witness, Ha re.
quesied the jury to consider how much of the testimony
depended upon the accaracy of Dobson in his state-
ments in respect to the passing of Powars and Kennady
together, the identity of the ciothes, &c. e com-
mented upon the finding of the memorandam book, and
bank bill, upon Powars. He remarked upon the chars
acter.and habits of the prisoner—upon the want of mo-
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tive te cemmit the erime-—upon the threatening lan-
guage for being irritated in a law suit—upon the expo~
sure of Powars’s room te observation, &c. He remind-
‘ed the jury of the inconclusiveness of the circumstances,
and the claimas of the prisoner to a charitable and con-
‘serentious consideration.  These are but brief hints of
the cource of argument of the learned advecate.

Durtng the argument of Mr. Webster, much noise was
heard from the erowd about thé door.. In pursuanee of di-
wections jrom the Court, a vonng man, who appeared to be
one of the foremost in producing the disturbance, was bro’t
~in, 2nd ordered to recognize with a surety in the snm of I‘Qﬁ
doilars, for his appearance tomorrow, to. answer for a oo«
tempt of Court, and in defauit of a suretys te be committed.

The Attorney General, n closing the cause, call--
ed the attention of the jury te the circumstances thag
appeared in evidence : That he was seen with Kenne-
dy the last time the latter was ever seen ; that they en-
tered together the house of Powars; that the latter.
eame out alone, a few hours after ; that the body of
Keunnedy was found in his cellar,in a secret grave ; that
he proceeded to commit an additional felony 1 plune
dering Kennedy’s treok ; and that the suspicion aris.
ing from these c¢ircumstances was confirmed by his
~flight, and by the result of his examination in Philadel-

phia. ~ The Atturney General sinted the dilemma in
which the priscner stcod ; that he was either in the
house at the time, and if so, commitied the murder or.
was accessary to ity or be was not there, and then he
~was bound to prove that he was not. 'L'he Attorney
&eneral argued that the revengeful spirit and avari-
cious temper which Poewars discovered were sutiicient
_motives to be supposed to have influenced nun
He quoted the muxim of the law, futetur fucinus qur ju~
dicii.;mﬁ{git ; and stated the tmposibiity of lmagining
any other person, who could have cotumitted the crime,
united with the other circumstances to fix guilt on the
prisoner. The Attorney General specilied as damuv-
ing circumstaunces, the discovery of Kennedy’s clothes
inthe chest of Powars and the memorandum book of
Kennedy in his possession. T'he Atlorney General ex-
pressed his opinion, that the circumstances detailed
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amounted te a chain of proofstronger than the testimo-
ﬁy of half a dozen witnesses ; and concluded by warn-
ing the jury not to betray the intérests of society in a
‘mistaken zeal to protect those of the prisoper.. = =~
The attorney General having closed his remarks, the
Prisoner was informed by the Court that he was at lib-
erty to make any statement that he wished in his own
favor. Upon this the Prisoner stated in a confused
manner, and 1n a strong foreign accent, that Kennedy
gave him tbe pocket book the Monday before he left
Boston ;- that he (Powars) had bougnt and paid for the
¢lothes, down by the market ; that Kennedy had giv-
en him seventeen dollars, at the same time that he.
eave him the pocket book. - -

Chief Justice Parker, then charged the jury. He
entered into. a - minute recapitulation of the evi-
dence, accompanying it with remarks calculated to
place it in a proper light. He observed that there
was an unusual smlpltclty in the cause, and no. questiong
of law to perplex the minds of the jury, the issue be-
ing confined to the single question of fact.

He observed to the jury, that the absence of motives
to commit this crime on the part of Powars, had been
urged to them as a reason for acquitting him. It is not
always possible, however to arrive at the motives of
humanactions, nor when a crime 1s committed was it ne-
cessary that they should be satisfied what were the mo=
tives that led to it. Different men act with more
or less disguise, and some are influenced by considera-
tions which would have no effect upon others. But 1n
this case, evidence had been offered to them of a taw suait
with Kennedy in which Powers was unsuccessful; and
the feelings which it had excited, were expres-ed in
threats,and declarations of a determmatlon to be reveno-
ed. Menaces of this kind are generally indeed we rls
of passion, and may not be foilowed by the commission
of any crime ; but when the deed threatened actially
takes place, they assume another character. |

The Chief Justice, explained to the jury, the nafur.
of circumstantial evidence, and cautioned them ag.iast
being misled by the result of one or two cases in as many
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centuries, in which the innocent had been econvicted on
circumstantial evidence. IHe alluded to the cases ef
the Uncle and Ward, and that of the Boorns in Vermont,.
which had been cited by the Prisoner’s counsel; and
ohserved that each ol those cases differed essentially
trom the present, there being in those no suilicient evi-
degice of the death of the person supposed to be mur-
dered.  He stated that the proper use of such cases was

to impress the minds of the jury, with the necessity of
caution, and not to indace them to acquit the guilty.

- 'I'he jury reilired at half past 8—and returned im
about twenty minutee with a verdict of GUILTY.

Wednesday, April 12.

At 10 o’clock the court was opened, and the prisones,
Michael Powers was set to the bar,

'T'he Attorney General rose and addressed the Court
as follows :

May it please your Honours—

Michael Powars, the prisoner at the bar, has been
indicted by the Grand Inquest for the bodies of these
gounties of the crime of wilful murder, committed on
the bedy of Timothy Kennedy. On this indictment he
has been arraigned at the bar of this Court, and en his
- arraigriment he pleaded not gwalyy ; sufficient time was
- aHlowed him te prepare for his trial, and Counsel
learned in the law, of his own choeice, were assigned to

a.d him in his defence. A traverse jury of his own selee-
cion, from the venire returned, were sworn and impan-
nelled to try the issue hetween the Commonwealth and
kim. 'Fhis jury, after hearing the evidenee produced
on the part of government, and the arguments of his
counsel in his defence, have feturned their verdict, that
he is guilty ; and this verdict has been aﬂirmed and
recorded.

By a statute of this Commonuealth the punishment
affixed to the commission of this offence is praTy, F
therefore move your Honours that the sentence of
D EATH be now passed upon the prisoner, as a just
retribution for the e¢irxne, of which he stands eonvic-
vad of recerd.
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The Chief Justice then addressed the prisoner, and
told him that if he bad any thing to say before the sen-

tence of the court was passed upon him, ‘he might now
say 1l i

The prisoner, in a rapid, agitated, and an-
gry manner, said, “ I think the court very
dishenorable. [ am not guilty. It has not

been proved that I am gulty. If there was
one witness that proved that I am guilty, k

sheuld be satisfied. May it please your hon-
eurs, I am dissatisfied.”

SENTENCE.

BY THE

CHIEF JUSTICE.
WICHAEL POWARS !

YOU now stand convicted, after a full and fair triak,
of the wilful murder of Timothy Kennedy. Yeu have
been permitted to avail yourself of all the privileges
which the humane laws of the country allow to those
who are put upon trialfor their lives, You have hadable
and faithful Ceunsel assigned by the Court at your re-
quest to aid you in your defence, and they have present-
ed to the Jury every consideration which could have a
favourable tendency upen your case. From the whole
body of jurors returned to serve at this Conrt you se-
lected those te whom you were most willing te commit
the solemn issue. 'T'heir verdict is the necessary and
unavoidable result of the clear and convineing evidence
submitted to their consideration. That all the proceed-
mgs have been regular and consistent with the rules of
law the court are satisfied, and they entertain no doubt
that you have been rightfully proved guilty of the

erime, whereof you were accused by the Grand ln-
quest for these Counties. '
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There were circumstances attending the commission-
of this crime, which are calculated to appal the firm-
est mind, to humble the proudest heart when con-
sidering ofawlgt atrocities our nature is capable, left to
its bad passions unchecked by religion, unawed by a
sense of God’s pawer and justice. The malignity in
which your crime was committed, and the desperate,
unrelenting gruelty and boldness with which it was ex-
ecuted, teach us that however exalted above other an-
imals man i8 when under the guidance of conscience and
reason, he also transcends them all In ferocity when .
loosed from those moral guards and checks.

The beast of .prey, impelled by extincty devours to-
satisfy an.appetite for which he can no otherwise pro-
vide. He but obeys the law of his nature’; but man, in
mtellect a little lower than the angels, rebels against
his better-nature; and preys upon his fellow from ha-
tred, malice, revenge, passions which if left alone in
his heart, make him worse, more cruel, more ferocious
than those animals whose natural food 1s blood and ‘'who .
are cruel only from necessity.

There 1s reason to believe that you had long brood-
ed over a supposed injury from the victim of vour re-
venge, and meditated his destruction; having suspend-
ed it only till you could strike with sure eflect, and con-
trive the measures of escape trom justice. ‘I'hat you
- decoyed Kennedy to your house under the pretence of
friendship. and hospitality; and there, when no human
eye could witness the barbarous deed, with one deadly
blow you extinguished his life, sending' this defenceless,
and to all appearance unoiiending young man, one of
your own natioa and kindred, to his great ac-
count, before that tribunal! where you also must soon
appear to answer for this attrocious act of wickedness,
-His mangled body, scorched by the fire into which the
blow had precipitated him, with ruthless hands you
dragged down into that cave of horror, where for days
a2 nights before you had probably been employed in
preparing a grave to bury and conceal it. :

Even in this dismal retreat, shut out from the blessed
light of heaven, and busied with the frightful inhuma-
tion of vour murdered victim, * there were ne com-
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punétious visitings of conscience,” for from thence ysu
sallied, your crime unpunished, and its proof as you
thought in the bowels of the earth, te plunder the lit-
tle stock of him you had murdered.

You fancied yourself safe, because your dreadful or-
gies were seen by no human eye, and you regarded not:
that eye which penetrates darkness itself, and sees all
#hings at all times and in all places.

Yet you were hurried by the worm within you from
the scene of your guilt; for the guilt of blood leaves
nwo peace to the heart however hard, or the conscience
however seared.

The fear of God cometh even to the wicked, when
stained with blood, and tfrom the time of the first mup-
der to this its parallel, he who hath imbrued his hands
in innocent blood, has never been able to hold his head
erect, or wear the port of mmnocence.

You were safe from the hands of justice, ina distant
¢1iy, ready to embark for your native country, exulting
no doubt in the accomplishmeut of your revenge, and
w your security from punishment. Butan Almighty
hand guided your steps, and you were brought into the
presence of the only man in a great and populous town.
who was able to recognize your person and deliver you
over to the law. Thus the very means adopted for
your safety, were made the instrument of detection,
and you were permitted to flee only to ensure the mani-
festation of your guilt. '

~ Is there no Providence in this ?

How is1t that those who meditate murders do not see
that a brother’s bleod will cry from the ground, and that
avery step they take will muitiply the proofs of their
<rime,

Years may pass away in fancied security, and the
¢rime be almost effaced from the memory of man, and
yet soon or late murder will speak out, and overwhelm
its perpetrator with confusion and dismay. Andif not,
w there mo hereafter? Shall he who has said thou shait
not kill, suffer his law to be violated with impunity ?

Is there no punishment in store for those who destroy
God’s image upon earth, and escape the vigilance of
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human tribunals ? Vengeance is mine, saith the Lord
I will repay. |

Is death here the expiation of a crime of so deep
a die ? Reason and Revelation, answer no.. The of
fence against human laws is expiated by death; but
there 18 a dread account to come. 'The momentary
pangs of death as inflicted by our laws are no more, not
so much perhaps as were suffered by the mnocent vie-
tim of revenge.. There mustbe a suffering for the un-
repenting sinper beyond comparison greater.

There things are set betfore you, and the enormity
of your crime pourtrayed thus in mercy, that if possible
they may work upon your conscience and prepare the.
way for repentance ; What then is your condition, and
what the work you have to do ?# You will probably be
spared a few weeks of life, fo make your peace with
Heaven—Whatever sins you have committed in your
evil course, ought to lay heavy uwpon your mind..

Your time is short, your work 15 great; begin then
to set your heart in order, bow yourself to the offended
~ Majesty of heaven. Lastento the holy men who will
offer to' help you to repentance—subdue those malige
nant passions which have led yon to this enormity,
And when you come to die, may you have a broken
and contrite spirit, that you may be a fit subject for that
grace and mercy, which are in store tor the vilest of sin-
ners, if he sincerely repent and turn from the. evil of
his ways. Hear then the sentence which the law
awards against you. |

It 18, that you be removed from this bar to the prison
from whence yeou were taken, from thence to the
place ef execution, and that there ycu be hanged
by the neck, until you are dead, and may God of his
infinite goodness through the merits of the Redeemer,
have mercy upon your soul.

N. B. 'The priconer seemed all along to have la..
bored under a false impression, but too prevalent, that
unless there should be positive and direct testimony of.
his committing the murder, by some one who was eye
witness to the scene, he could not be convicted accor-

ding to the laws of this Cemmonwealth—This fatal mis-
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take ought to be corrected, it is wholly without founda-
tion—most of the convictions which occur are upon
circumstantial evidence, and every one conversant with
Courts knows this sort of evidence to be competent and
legal, and that it oftentimes is as satisfactory as direct
and positive proof and sometimes more 0.



